MULTICARE PHARMACEUTICALS
‘ PHILIPPINES, INC. _
(A Subsidiary of Lupin Holdings, B.V.)
| ! o 1 [
: Financial Statements
March 31, 2017 and 2016
and
Independent Auditors’ Report

, Rufino Tower Buiidin'g, 6784 Ayala Avenue.
Makati City, ‘Philippines



Navarro Amper & Co.

N a P Am er&( (} 19th Faor Net Lima Plaza
V a rr O \ » B Sth Avenue corner 26th Streer,
§ . ) * Borifacio Global City, Taguig 1634
) . - Philippines :

el +63 (2) 581 9000
Fax: +63 (2) 869.3676
www.deloitte com/ph

BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0004
SEC Accreditation No. 0001-FR-4.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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6784 Ayala Avenue, Makati City:

Report on the Financial Stateihents:

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financlal statements of ‘Multicare Pharmageuticals
Philippines, Inc. (the “Company“), which comprise the statements ‘of financial position as at
‘March 31 2017 and 2016, and the statements of comprehenswe income, statements of
. changes in equity and statements of cash flows for the years then énded, @nd notes to the
financial statements, including summary of significant accountlng poll<:|es ) ’

Il material respects,
6; and its financial
Philippine Financial

In our opinion, the accompanying fihancial statements . present falrly, i
the financial position of the Company as at March 31, 2017 and 2(
performance and its cash fiows for. the years then ended in‘accordance wi
Reporting Standards (PFRS)

i ' Basis for Opinion
.We conducted our audlt m accordance WIth Phllipplne Standards on Audltmg (PSA) our

raccordance with these re.qu:rements and. the Code of Ethlcs We belleve that the au__.:__
‘we haye obtained’is sufficient-and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinlon..

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governarice for the Fmanc:al
Statements :

Management is responsible for the preparatlon and fair presentatlon of these: fi nancral
‘statements. in accordance with PFRS, and for such internal control as Mariagenient determines
is tiecessary to enable the preparatlon of financial statements that are free from material
" misstatément, whether due to-fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessmg the Compaiiy’s
ability to contmue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, mattérs related to going
concern and using the gomg cohcéen basis: of atcotiiting unlagss Manageitierit either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease’ operatsors, ér has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s. ‘financial
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.. Auditors’ ReSponsib:‘(ities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
- Qur objectives are-to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an

- auditor's report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
.. but is not a guarantee- that an audit conducted in accordance with PSA will always detect a .
- material misstatement when It exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
~considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to

influerice the economlc decisions of users: taken on the basis of f“nancual statements

As part of an audxt in ‘accordance with-PSA, we exercise- professional Judgment and mamtam
professional skepticism throughout the audlt We also: ,

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatément of: the financial statements, whether..

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis forour opinion.

- ‘The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resultmg from fraud is higher than for
one resulting ‘from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentiohal omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of interhal control.

+ Obtain an: understanding of internal control relevant to the audit ir order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the cirqumstances, but ‘not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion,on the effectiveness of the Company’s lnternal contr_el

» Evaluate the ap.propnateness_ of accounting policies used and: the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosUres made by Management:

¢+ Conclude on the appropriateness of Managements use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast sugmfcant doubt an the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditors Feport to the related disclosures in. the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. HOWever future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

« ‘Evaluate the -overall presentation, structure and content. of the consolidated fihanciatl
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated: financial statements
represent the ‘underlying transactlons and events in a. manner that achieves fair
presentation. : . '

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing -of the audit and significant audit findings,. mcludmg any’ s;gmﬂcant
-deficiencies in internal contiol that we idenitify during our audit;
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_Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Report ori the Supplementary Information Required by the Bureau of Interna/ Revenue
our . audit was conducted -for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic fmancual

" gtatements taken as a whole. The supplementary information in Note 35 to the financial -
_statements is presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and is not-a

tequired part of the basic financial statements. Such supplémentary information is the
responsibility of Management and has been subjected to the. auditing procedures applled in our-
audit of the basic financial statements. In our opinion; the supplementary infortmation is fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the basic finanicial statements taken as a whole.

Navarro Amper & Co.

BOA Registration No, 0004, valid from December 4, 2015 to December 31, 2018

SEC Accreditation No. 0001-FR-4, issued on January 7; 2016; eFFectIve untll January 6, 2019, Group A
TIN 005299331

By: *

Marjtes B. Landicho

=PA License No. 0090833

SEC A.N. 0356-AR- -3, issued on May 1, 2015; effective until April 30, 2018, Group A

TIN 151561118

BIR A.N. 08-002552-15-2014, issued on October 3, 2014; effective until October 3, 2017

PTR-No. A-3264641, issued on January 5, 2017, Taguig City

Taguig City, Philippines
May 3, 2017
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. MULTICARE PHARMACEUTICALS PHILIPPINES, INC.
" (A, Subsidiary of Lupin Holdings, B.V.)

"STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

\

Retained earnings

221,669,008

- - g~

March 31
Notes 2017 2016
ASSETS
Current Assets C
Cash 6 P 115,266,426 P 63,872,928 .
_Trade and other receivables - net 7, 34 758,465,602 686,967,314
Due from a related party 18 3,114,119 - 1,907,936
‘Inventories.- net 8 - 524,132,274 334,885,914
Prepaymerits and other current assets . 9 18,942,301 14,983,331
Total Current Assets 1,419,920,722 . 1,102,617,423
Non-current Assets - '
_Property and equipment - net 10 54,681,790 53,520,960
Intangible assets - net. 11 34,604,467 38,114,548
-Deferred tax assets 29 8,731,813 9,322,088
_Other non-current assets 12 2,289,167 2,232,206
Total Non-current Assets 100,307,237 103,189,802
P1,520,227,959 P1,205,807,225
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities _ .
Trade and other payables 13, 34 P 547,601,320 P325,983,536 -
_Shor_t—te_rm borrowings 14 353,250,000 368,250,000
Due to related parties i8 11,351,476 5,832,273 -
Income tax payable ) 32,387,520 37,346,042
Dividends payable 20 348,715 249,933
. Total Current Liabilities 944,939,031 737,661,784
Non-current Liabilitigs
Retirement benefit obligation 16 54,193,420 27,376,101
Other non-current liabilities 15 ' - 6,732,659
Total Non-current Liabilities 54,193,420 34,108,760
999,132,451 771,770,544
Equity .
Share capital 19 171,026,500 149,026,500
" Share premium 19 28,400,000 28,400,000

256 610 181

LIT, VLV, a0

521,095,508

434,036,681

Totai Equity

See Notes to Financial Statements.

P1,520,227,959

P1,205,807,225
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MU=LTICA§E PHARMACEUTICALS PHILIPPINES, INC.

.(A-Subsidiary of Lupin Holdings, B.V.)

. . 'STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

-For the Years End'ed March 31

Notes 2017 2016~
Net Sales 21,3 P1,906,195,156  P1,581,276,615
" Caost of Goods Sold 22 1,082,318,984 904,803,804
Gross Profit ' 823,876,172 676,472,811
Other Income 23 4,646,751 : 4,565,222
C 828,522,923 681,038,033
. 7
Operating Expenses 24, 34 602,522,976 486,197,837
Other Expenses 25 4,335,572 5,584,077
- Finance Costs 14 9,958,631 §683-,562
Profit Before Tax 211,705,744 180,572,557
Income Tax Expense 28 65,146,081 56,914,673
- 7 [ ‘
Profit for the Year - 146,559,663 123,657,884
Other Comprehensive Loss
Item that will not be reclassified
subsequently
' to profit or loss:
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation 16 ~ (23,585,449) (4,057,445)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year

P 122974,214

P 119,600,439

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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. MULTECARE PHARMACEUTICALS PHILIPPINES, INC.

" (A Subsidiary of Lupin Holdings, B.N.)
TEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the Years Ended March 31

Share Share Retained
Notes Capital i Premium Earnings Total
Balance, April 1, 2015 i P 89,775,000 P28,400,000 P234,056,517 P352,231,517
Profit for the year . - - . 123,657,884 "123,657,884
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation 16 - - (4,057,445) {4,057,445)
 Total Comprehensive Income : - - 119,600,439 119,600,439
~ Transaction with owners: - . . .
1ssuance of stock dividends 19 59,251,500 - (59,251,500} =
.- Dividends declared 20 - - (37,795,275) (37,795,275)
Balance, March 31; 2016 149,026,500.00 28,400,000 256,610,181 434,036,681
-Profit for the year . . - - 146,559,663 146,559,663
 Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation 16 - - (23,585,449) (23,585,449)
Total Comprehensive Income ) - - 122,974,214 122,974,214
Transaction with owners: :
Issuance of stock dividends 19 ) ¥ 22,000,000 - i (22,000,000) - £
Dividends declared. 20 - - (35,915,387) (35,915,387)
Balance‘ March 31, 2017 P171,026,500 P28,400,000 P321,669,008 P521,095,508

See Notes to Financial Statements.




s :_‘.'MULTI’CA'RE PHARMACEUTICALS PHILIPPINES, INC.

" (A Subsidiary of Lupin Holdings, B.V.)

TATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS.

For the Years Ended March 31

Notes 2017 2016
.'(":ash Flows from Operafing Activities . _
Profit before tax : - P211,705,744 P180,572,557 -
Adjustments for: ) o
Sales returns and alfowances and reversal - net 7 43,363,078 (12,846,149)
' Depreciation and amortization : 10, 11 29,786,568 27,767,225
_ Loss on inventory obsolescence’ 8,22 24,479,257 11,518,446
Finance costs 14 9,958,631 8,683,562
Retirement benefits cost o 16 9,231,870 8,003,372
Gain on disposal of property and equipment - net 10 (3,790,483) (4,044,138)
Unrealized foreign exchange loss - net 74,154 374,822
Doubtful accounts expense ) 7 - 2,000,000
. - ¥
Interest income _ ! 6 ' (89,767) _(49,663)
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 324,719,052 221,980,034
Decrease (Increase) in:
Trade and other receivables. (114,861,366) (255,537,351)
-Inventories ’ (213,725,617) (165,519,370)
Prepayments and other current assets (3,958,970) (3,766,640)
Due from a related party (1,206,183) (1,640,800)
Other non-current assets (56,961) (222,712)
Increase (Decrease) in:
Trade, other payables and provisions 201,831,976 153,083,391
Other non-current liabilities (6,732,659) (6,344,787)
Due to related parties ‘5,519,203 5,755,717
Cash generated from operations 191,528,475 (52,212,518)
Interest income received 89,767 49,663
Finance costs paid (9,958,631) (8,683,562)
Contributions to the pension fund (6,000,000) -
Income taxes paid ~ (49,752,015) - (62,523,764)
Net cash from (used in) operating activities 125,907,596 (123,370,181)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities . .
‘Additions to property and equipment : 10 (24,444,215) (26,467,888)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 4,178,429 . 4,643,624
Additions to intangible assets 11 {3,381,048) (1,570,528)
Net cash used in investing activities _(23,646,834) 423,394,792).
Cash Flows from Financing Activities '
Proceeds from short-term borrowings ' ’ . 14 473,750,000 517,000,000
Payment of short-term borrowings 14 (488,750,000) (336,250,000)
Dividends paid : 20 _(35,816,605) _(37,725,974)
Net cash from (used in) financing activities | _(50,816,605) ) 143,024,026
" Effects of Exchange Rate Changes _(50,659) -
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 51,393,498 (3,740,947)
Cash, Beginaning : 63,872,928 67,613,875
Cash, End P115,266,426 P 63,872,928

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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' }- MULTICARE PHARMACEUTICALS PHILIPPINES, INC
_* (A Subsidiary of Lupin Holdings, B.V.) ‘

‘NOTES TO' FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
,AS AT AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2017 AND 2016

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Multicare Pharmaceutlcals Philippines, Inc. (the “Company ) was. |ncorporated in the
Philippines and registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission. (SEC) on
November 9, 2001, and started commercial operations on January 3, 2002. Its primary
purpose is to engage in the business of buying, selling, importing, marketing, distribution
by wholesale and retail, both domestic and international, all drugs, medicines, chemicals,
medical devices and allied products, pharmaceuticals and other articles pertaining to the

- drug business.

On March 25, 2009, the ultimate parent company, Lupin Limited ("LL”), through its
wholly owned subsidiary, Lupin Holdings B.V. (LHBV), acquired 51% equity stake in the
Company. LL is an Indian-based pharmaceutical company listed in the Bombay Stock
Exchange that develops and markets a range of generic formulations and activé
pharfmaceutical ingredients wotldwide. LHBV is a company incorporated and domitiled
in the Netherlands. The equity acquisition by LL gives the Company increased access to
international research and development, world-class manufacturing capabilities which
will further strengthen the Company’s position in the local market.

The Company’s régistered office address and principal place of business is at the 26t
Floor, Rufino Tower Building, 6784 Ayala Avenue, Makati City, Philippines.

FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK AND BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
PRESENTATION

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS), which includes all applicable PFRS,
Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS), and interpretations issued by the International
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC), Philippine Interpretations
Committee (PIC), and Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC), as approved by the
Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) and Board of Accountancy (BOA), and.
adopted by the SEC. :

~ Basis of P_reparation and Presentation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the
following:

s certain financial instruments carried at amortized cost;
s inventories carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value; and

« the defined benefit obligation recognhized at the total of the present value of the
- retirement benefit obligation less the fair value of plan assets

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the cons:deratlon given in exchange
for goods and services.
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Fair value is the price that would bé received to sell an asset of paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between. market. participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that-price is directly observable or estimated using another .
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company
takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the ‘asset or liability at the

" measurement date, Fair value for meqsurément and/or disclosure purposes in these

consolidated financial statements is determined on such a -basis, -except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of PFRS 2, leasing

‘transactions that are within the scope of PAS 17, and measurements that have some
- similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realizable value in'PAS 2 or

value in use in PAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized
into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs .to the fair value

. measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

« - Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

« Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices |ncIuded within Level 1, that are
' observable for the assetYor Ilablllty, either dlrectly’or mdlrectly, and ' .

« Level 3 inputs aré unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Functidnal and Presentation Cufrency

These financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso, the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates. All amounts are rounded to the
nearest peso, except when mdlcated

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Adoption of New and Revised Accounting Standards Effective i'n_ 2016

All the applicable revised accounting standards and interpretations that have been
published by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and issued by the
FRSC in the Philippines were adopted by the Company effective April 1, 2016 and were
assessed to have no significant impact to the flnanCIaI statements.

New Accounting Standard Effective after the Reporting Period Ended
March 31, 2017

The Company will adopt the following PFRS once these become effective:

PFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2014)
This standard consists of the following three phases:

Phase 1: Classification and measurement _of financial assets and financial liabilities

With respect to the classification and.measurement under this standard, all recognized
financial assets that are currently within the scope of PAS 39, Financial Instruments
Recognition and Measurements, will be subsequently measured at either amortized cost
or fair value. Specifically: .

¢ Adebt instrument that (i) is held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows and (ii) has contractual cash fiows that are solely payments
-of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding must be measured at
amortized cost (net of any write done for impairment), unless the asset is designated
at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) under the fair value option;

0O
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e Adebt |nstrument that (i) is held. within a business model whose objective is achieved
"both by collectlng contractual cash flows and selling’ financial assets and (ii) has
‘contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely .
payments of prmCIpa! and interest on the principal amount outstanding, must be
measuréd at fair value through other comprehensive income.(FVTOCI), unless the

asset is designated at FVTPL under the fair value option; .

« All other debt mstruments must be measured at FVTPL; and

« All equity investments are to be measured in the statement of financial position at fair
value, with gains and losses recognized in profit or loss except that if an equity
investment is not held for trading, an irrevocable election can be made at initial

~ recognition to measure the investment at FVTOCI, with dividend income recognized
in profit or loss.

This standard also contains requirements for the classification and measurement of .
financial liabilities and derecognition requirements. One major change from PAS 39 relates
to the presentation of changes in the fair value of a financial liability designated as at
FVTPL attributable to changes in the credit risk for the liability. Under this standard, such
changes are presented in other comprehensive income, unless the presentation of the
effect of the change in the liability. credit risk in other comprehensive income would create .

or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to

a financial liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under
PAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the financial liability designated
as FVTPL is presented in profit or loss.

Phas_e 2: Impairment methodology

The impairment model under this standard reflects expected credit losses, as opposed to
incurred credit losses under PAS 39. Under the impairment approach of this standard, it is

. nolonger necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are recognized.

Instead, an.entity -always accounts for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses. The amount of expected credit losses should be updated at each
reporting date to reﬂect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Phase 3: Hedge accountlng

The general hedge accounting requirements for this standard retain the three types of
hedge accounting mechanism in PAS 39. However, greater flexibility has been introduced
to the types of transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the types
of instruments that qualify as hedging instruments and the types of risk components of
non-financial items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the effectiveness
test has been overhauled and replaced with -the principle of economic relationships.
Retrospective assessment of hedge effectiveness is no longer required. Far more
disclosure requirements -about an entltys risk management activities have been
introduced.

The standard- is effective for annual reporting périods beginning on or after
January 1, 2018. Earlier application is permitted.’

The Company's initial assessment of potential impact of adopting PFRS 9 to its financial
statements in the future provides that. it would change the classification of its financial
assets but it will not affect the measurement of its current types of financial assets. The
Company will continue its assessment and finalize the same upon the effective date of
the new standard.

PFRS 16, Leases

This standard specifies how a PFRS reporter will recognize, measure, present and
disclose leases. It provides a single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to
recognize assets and iiabilities for all leases uniess the lease term is 12 moinths or less
or the underlying asset has a low value. Lessors continue to classify leases as operating
or finance, with PFRS 16’s approach to lessor accounting substantially unchanged from

its predecessor, PAS 17,

: : 3



The standard '|s effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after

- January 1, 2019. Earlier application is not permltted untif PFRS 15, Revenue from

.'Contracts w1th Customers, is adopted

' Future adoption of- this standard will result in recognition of right-of-use of asset and
lease |Iabl|lty and additional d|sclosure in the Companys financial statements..

Amendments to PFRS 2 Class:f“ cation and Measurement of Share- based Payment
Transactions -

The amendments to PFRS 2 include:

a. Accounting for cash-settled share-based payment transactions that contain a
performance condition. The amendment added guidance that introduces accounting
requirements for cash-settled share-based payments that follows the same ‘approach
as used for equtty -settled share-based payments.

b. Classmcatlon of share-ba_sed payment transactions with net settiement features. The
amendmeént has introduced an exception into PFRS 2 so that a share-based payment
where the entity settles the share-based payment arrangement net is classified as
equity-settled in its entirety provided the share-based payment would have been
classified as equity-gettled had it not included ¢he net settlement feature, '

c. Accounting for modifications of share-based payment transactions from cash-settled
" to equity-settled. The amendment has introduced the following clarifications:

+ On modifications, the original liability recognized in respect of the cash-settled

- share-based payment is derecognized and the equity-settled share-based
payment is recognized at the modification date fair value to the extent services
have been rendered up to the modification date.

e Any difference between the carrying amount of the liability as at the modification
" date and the amount recognized in equity at the same date would be recognized
in profit and loss immediately.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2018 with earlier application permitted.

The Management is still assessing the impact of the amendments on the Company’s
financial statements. ' '
Amendment to PAS 7, Disclosure Initiative .

The amendment clarify that entities shall provide disclosures that enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January
1, 2017. Earlier application is permitted.

" Future adoption of this amendment will not have a 5|gn|Fcant impact on the Company’s

financial statements as the Company does not have liabilities arising from Fnancnng
activities. N

Amendments to PAS 12, Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses
The amendments clarify the following aspects: '

« Unrealized losses on debt instruments measured at fair value and measured at cost
for tax purposes give rise to a deductible temporary difference regardless of ‘whether
the debt instrument's holder expects to recover the carrying amount of the debt
instrument by sale or by use

« The carrying amount of an asset does not limit the est|mat|on of probable future

taxable prnfnfc

LaAalD

< Estimates for future taxable profits exciude tax deductions resuiting from the
reversal of deductible temporary differences. :
« - An entity assesses a deferred tax asset in combination with other deferred tax

assets. Where tax law restricts the utilization of tax losses, an entity would assess a
deferred tax asset in combination with other deferred tax assets of the same type.
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The amendments -are effective for .annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2017. Earlier application is permitted.

Future adoption of these amendments will not havé a significant impact on the
Company’s financial statements. .

- 'New Accounting Standards Issued by International Accountmg Standard Board

(IASB) which_ is Effective After the Reporting ~Period Ended
March 31, 2017 but Pending for Publication by the BOA. .

The Company will adopt the followmg Standards once adopted in the Philippines and
become effective. _

PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The standard combines, enhances, and replaces specific guidance on recognizing
revenue with a single standards. An entity will recognize revenue to depict the transfer
of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that refiects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

It defines a new five-step model to recognize revenue from customer contracts.
e Identify the contréct(s) with a customer ¢ "

¢ Identify the performance obligations in the contract

¢ Determine the t.ransaction price

e Allocate the transaction price to the performance obllgatlons in the contract

o Recognlse revenue when (or as) the entity satlsfles a performance obligation.

‘Application of this guidance will depend on the facts and circumstances present in a

contract with a customer and will require the exercise of judgment.

The standard is mandatory for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2018. Earlier application is permitted.

The Company’s initial assessment of potential impact of adopting IFRS 15 to its financial
statements in the future provides that its current revenue recognition policy will not be
significantly affected. The Company will continue its assessment and finalize the same

. upon effective date of the new standard.

PIC Q&A No. 2016-04 - Application of IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customérs
on Sale of Residential Properties under Pre-completion Contracts

This interpretation applies to the accounting for revenue from the ‘sale of a residential
property unit under pre-completion stage (i.e., construction is on-going or has not yet

.commenced) by a real estate developer that enters into. a Contract to Sell (CTS) with.a

buyer, and the developer has determined that the contract is within the scope of
IFRS 15 by satisfying all the criteria in paragraph 9 of IFRS 15,

This interpretation does not deal with the accountlng for other aspects of real estate
sales such as variable considerations, financing components, commissions and other
contract costs, t|m|ng of sales of completed properties, etc.

Future-adoption of this interpretation will not have a significant |mpact on the Company’s
financial statements as the Company’s revenues do not arise from sale of residential
properties.
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Amendments to PFRS 4, Applying PFRS 9, F/nanC/a/ Instruments with PFRS 4, Insurance
Contracts

The amendments provide two opti_ons for entities that issue inSurance contracts within
the scope of PFRS 4:

« an option that permits entities "to reclassify, from profit or Ioss to other

comprehensive income, some of the income or expenses arising from designated
financial assets; this is the so-called overlay approach; and

« an optional temporary exemption from applying PFRS 9 for entities whose
predominant activity is issuing contracts within the scope of PFRS 4; this is'the so-

called deferral approach.

The application of both approaches is optional and an entity is permltted to stop applylng
them before the new insurance contracts standard is applied.

An entity applies the deferral approach for annual periods begmnlng on or after
January 1, 2018.

Future adoption of these amendments will not have an impact on the Company s financial
statements as the Company does not issue insurance contracts.

Annual Improvemefits to PFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle §

The annual improvements address the following issues:

Amendments to PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting
Standards

The amendments include the deletion of short-term exemptions stated in the appendix
of PFRS 1, because they have now served their intended purpose. The amendments are .
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018 with earlier application
permitted.

Future adoption of these amendments will not have an impact on the Company’s financial
statements as the Company-is no longer a first time adopter of PFRS.

Amendments to PFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

The amendments clarify the scope of the standard by specifying that the disclosure
requirements in the standard, except for those disclosures needed in the summarized
financial for subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, apply to an entity’s interests
that are classified as held for sale, as held for distribution or as discontinued operations
in accordance with PFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sa/e and D/scont/nued
Operations.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2017 with earlier application permitted.

Future adoption of these amendments will not have an impact on the Company'’s financial
statements as the Company does not have interests in other entities. :

Amendments to PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendments clarify that the election to measure at fair value through profit or loss
an investment in an associate or a joint venture that is held by an entity that.is a venture
capital organization, or other qualifying entity, is available for each investment in an
associate or joint venture on an investment-by-investment basis, upon initial
-recognition. ’ .

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
Janu_ary 1, 2018 with earlier application permitted. . s

Future adoption of these amendments will not have an impact on the Company’s financial
statements as the Company does not have investments in associates and joint ventures.
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Amendments to PAS. 40,-Investmen't Property - Transfers of Investment Property
“The amendments in Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments to IAS 40) are:

. . Stating that an entity shall transfer a property to, or from, investment property
when, and only when, there is evidence of a change in use."A change of use occurs
if property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment property. A change
in management’s intentions for the use of a property by itself does not constltute

evidence of a change in use.

'. The list of evidence in paragraph 57(a) - (d) was designated as non- exhaustlve list-
of examples lnstead of the previous exhaustive list.

The amendments are effective for periods beginning on.or after January 1, 2018. Earller
apphcatlon is permitted. _

Future adoption of these amendments will not" have a sngnlflcant impact on thel
.Company’s financial statements as the Compariy does not have an investment property

Philippine Interpretatlons IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
ConS/derat/on

The nnterpretatlon covers foreign currency transactions when an entlty recognizes a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the payment or receipt of
advance consideration before the entity recognizes the related asset, expense or income.
It does not apply when an entity measures the related asset, expense or income on
initial recognition at fair value or at the fair value of the consideration received or paid
at a date other than the date of initial recogmtuon of the non-monetary asset or
non-monetary liability.

The interpretation is effective for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. Earlier
application is permitted.

Future adoption of this interpretation will not have a significant impact on the Company’s
financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Financial Assets

Initial recoanition of financial assets

Financial assets are recognized in the Company’s financial statements when the
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets are recognized initially at fair value. Transaction costs are included in the initial
measurement of the Company S ﬁnancual assets, except for financial assets classified as
FVTPL

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets at .
FVTPL, held-to-maturity investments (HTM), available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets
and loans and receivables. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined. at -the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame establlshed by regulation or convention
in the marketplace

The financial assets of the Company consists only of Ioans and recelvables
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Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market are classified as loans and receivables

market. After initial recognition, loans and receivables are subsequently measured at -

" aimortized cost using the effective interest method, less any |mpalrment and are included

in. current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a debt

. instrument and of allocating interest over the relevant period. The effective interest rate

is the rate that exactly discounts-estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the debt instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter perlod to the net carrymg
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income i$ recognized by applylng the  effective interest rate, except for

short-term receivables when the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

" The Company’s financial assets classified under this category include cash, trade and

other receivables, and due from a related party and security deposit.

Impairment of financial assets
i

£ .
Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicat'ors of impairment at
the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired when
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash.flows of the
investment have been affected

Ob]'ective evidence of impairment
For financial assets carried at amortized cost, objective evidence of impairment could ,
include:

« significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or,
e« default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or,

« it -becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial
- re-organization; or,

+ the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
- difficulties;

+« the lender, for economic or legal reasons relating to the. borrower’s financial
" difficulty, granting to the borrower a concessuon that the lender would not otherwise

consider; or,

« observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from a group of financial assets since the initial recognition of those
assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with the individual fmancnal
assets in the group.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables,'assets that are

. assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a

collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Company’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period as well as
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default
'on receivables.

. Financial assets carried at amortized cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables carried
at amortized cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash.
flows, excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate, i.e., the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition. .
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The carrying amoont of financial assets carried at amortized cost is reduced directly by
‘the impairment loss with the exception of trade receivables, wherein the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When trade receivables are

‘ considered uncollectible, ‘these are written off. agalnst the allowance account.

Subsequent recoverieés of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes ‘in the carrying amount of the allowance account are

recagnized in.profit of loss. _
If, in a subsequent perlod the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was

recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss shall be reversed. The reversal
shall not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset that exceeds what the

. amortized cost would have been had the impairment not been recognized at the date

the impairment is reversed The amount of the reversal shall be recognized in profit or
loss.

Derecoqmtlon of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset -expire; or when the Company transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.of the asset derecognized and the
considerationi received or receivable i§ recognized in profit or #oss. If the Company
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company

. retains substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,

the Company continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a
collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

Inventories

- Inventories are initially measured at cost. Subsequently, inventories are stated at the '

lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average
method. Net realizable value is the estlmated selhng price iess all estimated costs of
completron and cost to make the sale. .

When the net realizable value of the inventories is lower than the cost, the Company
provides an allowance for the decline in the value of the inventory and recognizes the
write-down as an expense in profit or loss. The amount of any reversal of- any
write-down of inventories, arising from an iricrease in net realizable value, is recognized
as a reduction in the amount of inventoriés recognized as an expense in the perlod in
which the reversal occurs. .

When inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognized as
an expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognized.

Prepayme_nts .

Prepayments represent expenses not yet incurred but already paid in cash. Prepayments
are initially recorded as assets and measured at the amount of cash paid. Subsequently,
these are charged to profit or loss as they are consumed in operations or expire with the
passage of time.

Prepayments are classified in the statements of financial position as current assets when
the cost of goods or services related to the prepayments are expected to be incurred .
within one year or the Company’s normal operating cycle, whichever is longer.
Otherwise, prepayments are classified as non-current assets. :

: Property and Equipment

§
3

Property Fmd equipment are initially measured at cost. At the end of each reporting .
perlod, items of property and equipment are measured at cost less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation, amortization, and impairment losses. Cost includes

- expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of an

asset consists of its purchase price, professional fees, borrowing costs for qualifying
assets, and other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition
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Subsequent expendltures ‘relating to an item of property and equipment that have
already been recognized are added to the carrying amount of the asset when it is
probable that futuré economic benefits, in excess of the originally assessed standard of
‘performance of the existing asset, will flow to the Company. All other subsequent
expenditures are recognized as expenses in the perlod in which those are incurred.

Depreciation is computed on the stralght line method based on the estimated useful lives
. of the assets as follows:

Transportation equipment : \ 5 years
Office furniture and fixtures 5 years
. Warehouse equipment 3 to 5 years
Office equipment _ 3 years

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the improvements’ useful life of five years
or when shorter, the terms of the relevant lease.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrylng amount of the asset and ‘IS recognized in profit or

loss.
Intangible Assets

Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company with finite useful lives are initially
measured at cost. At the end of each reporting period items of intangible assets acquired
‘are measured at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment
losses. Cost includes purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable
purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates and any dlrectly attributable
cost of preparing the intangible asset for its intended use. .

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future_ economic
benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible assets may be impaired.
‘The amortization period and the amortization method used for intangible assets with
finite useful lives are reviewed at least at each reporting date. Changes in the expected
useful lives or the expected pattern of consumption of future. economic benefits
embodied in the assets are. accounted for by changing the amortization period or
method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The.
" amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in profit or loss
consistent with the function of the intangible asset. :

Amortization of computer software is computed using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful life of three years. :

Marketing rights are being amortized on a straight-line basis over a period of ten years
-based on the agreement.

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits
are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognized.
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Impalrment of Tanglble and Intangible Assets -

At.the end of each reporting period, ‘the Company assesses whether there is any
indication that any of its tangible and intangible assets may have suffered an |mpa|rment
loss. If any such indication exists; the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
.order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
éstimate the recoverable amount of .an individual asset, the Company estimates the -
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. If a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, assets are also allocated
to individual CGUs, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of. CGUs for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yét available for
use are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the

asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. In
assessing value-in-usé, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific tq the asset for WhICh the estimates of future cash
flows have not been ad]usted

If the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is estimated t'o be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset or CGU is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognized as an expense. Impairment fosses recognized in
respect of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the
unit (group of unlts) on a pro-rata basis.

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at the end of each reporting
period for any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the .
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized as income. .

Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and equrty instrument.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition

Financial liabilities are recognized in the Company’s financial statements when the
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
liabilities are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs are included in the initial
measurement of the Company’s financial liabilities, except for any debt instruments
classified as at FVTPL. :

FlnanCIal liabilities are clasered as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or other flnancral
liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Since the Company does not have financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL, all financial
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using .the effective interest
method, with interest expense recognized on an effective yieid basis.
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_ Financial |lab||ltIeS are derecogmzed by the Company when the: obligation under the
liability: is discharged, cancelled, or expired. The difference between the carrying amount

of the financial liability derecognlzed and the consideration paid and payable is recognlzed

in profit or loss.

Equity Instruments

"An equity mstrument is any contract that evndences a residual |nterest |n the assets of
the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. .

Ordinary shares '
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.. Incremental costs directly attributable to the
‘issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deductlon from the proceeds, -
net of tax.

§hare premium ‘

Share premium represents the excess amount paid by shareholders over the
par-value price of a stock issue. Share premium can arise from issuing elther preferred
or common stock.

Retained earnings _

Retained earnings represent accumulated profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company after deducting dividends declared. Retained earnings may also include effect .
of changes in accounting policy as may be required by the standard’s transitional
provisions.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the - Company has a present obligation, either legal or
constructive, as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required
to settle the obligation through an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits,
and the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.

The amount of the provision recognized is the best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the end of each reporting periqd, taking into account
the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. A provision is measured using
the ‘cash flows estimated to settle the present obhgatlon, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows.

-When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to
be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually .
certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be
measured reliably. :

- Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adJusted to reflect the
current best estimate.

If it is no longer probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obhgatlon the provision should be reversed.

Employee Benefits

Short-term_benefits

The‘\Company recognizes a Iiability net of amounts already paid and an expense for -
services rendered by employees during the period. Short- term beneflts glven by the

short-term compensated absences bonuses medlcal msurance and other non- monetary
benefits.

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and
are expensed as the related service is provided. -
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Post-emp!'oyment benefits

* Defined benefit plan

The Comipany classifies its retirement benefit as' defined benefit plans. Under defined
benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projecteéd unit credit
method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting
" period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes

" to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return-on plan assets (excluding interest), is
reflected immediately in the statement of financial position with a charge or credit .
recognized in OCI in the period in which they occur. -

Remeasurement recoghized in OCl is reflected immediately in retained earnings and will
not be reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognized in profit or loss in the
period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at
the beginning of the period to the net defined. benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit
costs are categorized as follows:

« Service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and
losses on curtailments and settlements)

"« Net interest expense or income’
| | 1
« Remeasurement

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss
in the line item salary, wages and employee benefits. Curtailment dains and losses are
accounted for as past service costs. .

The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the statements of financial position
represents the actual deficit or surplus in the Company’s defined benefit plans.

Share-based Payments

For cash-settled share-based payments, a liability is recognized for the goods or services
acquired, measured initially at the fair value of the liability. At the end of each reporting
period until the liability is settled, and at the date of settiement, the fair value of the
liability is remeasured, with any changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss for the
year.

Revenue Recognition :

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured
‘at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represerits the amounts
receivable for goods or services provided in the normal course of business.

" Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods, in the course of ordinary activities, is measured at the
fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts,
volume frebates and distribution costs based on the terms of the agreement.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when all the following conditions are satisfied:

e the Company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods or provided services as per relevant contract;

« the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold or
services provided;

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;-

¢ itis probable that the economic benefits associated with the transactlon will flow to
the Company; and -

e the costs mcurred or to be incurred in respect of the transactlon can be measured
reliably. : .
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Interest income from a flnancnal assetis recognlzed when itis probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably.

Ren_tallm |
Revenue recognition for rental income is disclosed in the Company s policy for leases.

w :
Other income is recognlzed when earned based on prowsuons of the related contract.

_ Expense Recognition

Expehses are recognized |n profit or loss when a decrease in future economic beneflts
related to a decrease in an asset or an increase in a liability has arisen that can be
measured reliably. Expenses are recognized in profit or loss on the basis of a direct
association between the costs incurred and the earning of specific items of income; on
the basis of systematic and rational allocation procedures when economic benefits are
expected to arise over several accounting periods and the association with income can
-only be broadly or indirectly determined; or lmmedlate‘ly when an expenditure produces
nd future economic benefits' or when, and to the extent that, future economic benefits
do not qualify, or cease to qualify, for recognltuon in the statements of financial position
-as an asset.

Expenses in the statements of comprehensive income are presented using the function
of expense method. Cost of sales consists of expenses incurred that are associated with
the goods sold. Operating expenses are costs attributable to admmlstratlve, selllng, and
other business activities of the Company.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownershlp to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Company as léssor

Operating lease

‘Rental income from operating leases is recognized as income on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to
enter into an operating lease are also spread on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Initial direct costs incurred by Company in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
is added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recogmzed as an expense over
the lease term on the same basis as the Iease income. '

The Company as lessee

Finance Iease

Assets held under finance leases are recognized as assets of the Company at their fair
value or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments, each determined
at the inception of the lease. The corresponding liability to the lessor is mcluded in the
. statements of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease
obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance charges are charged directly against income, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with
the Company’s general policy on borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are recognized as
expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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Operéting /e_ase Y
Opefating,-leasé' payments are recognized as an expense on-a straight-line basis over

the lease term, except when another systematic basis is more representative of the time

pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent
rentals arising under operating leases are recognized as an expense in the period in

whlch they- are incurred.

Foreign Currency Transactions and. Translatlon

Transactions in currencies other than Philippine Peso are recorded at the rates of
exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or pfoduction of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such

- time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

-hl_l other borrowing costs 5re‘recognized in profit orfoss in the period in w'hich"they are
incurred. .

Related Party Transactions

A related party trénsaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between
the Company and a related party, regardless of whether a price is charged.

Parties are considered related.if one party has control, joint control, or sxgnlﬂcant
influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. An entity
that is a post-empléyment benefit plan for the employees of the Company and the key
management personnel of the Company are also considered to be related parties.

Taxation _
Income tax expense represents the sum of the current tax expense and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs
from net profit as reported in the statements of comprehensive income because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The liability for current tax
is calculated using the regular corporate tax rate (RCIT) of 30% of taxable income or the
minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) of 2% of deflned gross income, whichever is
hlgher .

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit.. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all
taxable temporary differences, while deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable

_profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferfed tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to

-apply in the period in which the liability is settied or the asset realized, based on tax

rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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The mea"sttrement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax cOns»equentes
that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle ltS current tax

~ assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax for the vear

Current and deferred taxes are recognlzed as an expense or income in proflt or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognized outside .of profit or loss (whether
in OCI or directly in equity), in which case the taxes are also recognlzed outS|de profit

or Ioss

Events After the Reportmg Period

-The Company identifiés events after the end of each reporting period as those events,
. both favorable and unfavorable that occurs between the end of the reporting period and

the date when the financial statements are authorized for issue. The financial
statements of the Company are adjusted to reflect those events that provide evidence
of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period. Non-adjusting events after
the end of the reporting perlod are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements
when material.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, Management is required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on the historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical Judgments in Applying Accounting Policies

The following is the critical judgment, apart from those involving estimations, that

Management has made in the process of applying the entity’s accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in financial statements.

Classification of iease as operating lease

Leases are classified as operating leases whenever the terms of the lease do not transfer.
substantially all the risk and rewards of the ownership to the lessee. Judgment is used
in determining whether the significant risk and rewards of ownership are transferred to
the lessee. Failure to make the right judgment would dlrectly affect the Company’s
assets and liabilities.

Management believes that the lease agreements entered into by the Company did not
transfer substantially all the risk and rewards over the leased assets. Accordlngly, lease
agreements are classified as operating lease.

The Company’s operating leases are disclosed in Note 27.
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Discount rate used to determme the carrylng amount of the Comgany s defined benefit

obligation

The Company’s defined benefit obligation is discounted at a rate set by reference to
-market yields at the end of the report period on high quality corporate bonds. Significant
- judgment is required when setting the criteria for bonds to be included in the population
from which the yield curve is derived. The most significant criteria-considered for the

- selection.of bonds include the issue size of the corporate bonds, quality of the bonds and

the identification of outliers which are excluded

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertamty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of each reporting period that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrylng amounts of assets and liabilities within the

next financial year.

Estimating useful lives of assets

The useful lives of the Company’s property and equipment and intangible assets' with
definite life are estlmated based.on the.period over which the assets are expected to be
available for use. Thé estimated useful lives of'property and equipment and intangible
assets are reviewed periodically and are updated if expectations differ from previous
estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal
or other limits on the use of the Company’s assets. In addition, the estimation of the
useful lives is based on the Company’s collective assessment of indiistry practice, internal
technical evaluation and experience with similar assets. Itis possible, however, that future
results of operations could be materially affected by changes in estimates brought about
by changes in the factors mentioned above. The amounts and timing of recorded expenses
for any period would be affected by changes in these factors and circumstances. A
reduction in the estimated useful lives of property and equipment and intangible assets
would increase the recognized operating expenses.and decrease non-current assets.
The carrying amounts of the Company’s property and .equipment amounted to .
P54,681,790 and P53,520,960 as at March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, as
disclosed in Note 10. The carrying amounts of the Company’s intangible assets
amounted’ to P34,604,467 and  P38,114,548 as at March 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively, as disclosed in Note 11.

Total accumulated deprecization of property and equipment as at March 31, 2017 and
2016 amounted to P78,661,721 and P76,124,241, respectively, as disclosed in Note 10,
while total accumulated amortization of intangible assets as at March 31, 2017 and 2016
a_mounted to-P21,623,469 and P14,732,340, respectively, as disclosed in Note 11.

Asset impairment

The Company performs an impairment review when certain impairment md:cators are
present. .

. Determining the recoverable amounts of property and equipment and intangible assets,
which requires.the determination of future cash flows expected to be generated from
the continued use and ultimate disposition of such assets, requires the Company to make
estimates and assumptions that can materially affect the financial statements. Future
events could cause the Company to conclude that property and equipment associated
with an acquired business is impaired. Any resulting impairment loss could have a
material adverse impact on the financial condition and results of operations.

The preparation of the estimated future cash rows involves significant Judgment and
estimations. While the Company believes that its assumptions are appropriate and
reasonable, significant changes in the assumptions may materially affect the assessment
of recoverable values and may lead to future additional impairment charges.

As at March 31, 2017 and 2016, Management believes that the recoverable amounts of
property and equipment and intangible assets exceed its carrying amounts. Accordingly,
no impairment loss was recognized in both years.
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.t/matlng allowances for doubtful accounts, sales d/scounts and sales returns

'e Company" estlmates the allowance for doubtful accounts related to |ts trade and
her receivables and receivables due from a related party based on assessment of
cific accounts when the Company has information that certain-counterparties are
unable to méet their financial obligations. In these casés judgment used was based on
the best available facts and circumstances including but not limited to, the length of .
- relatlonshlp with the counterparties and the counterparties’ current credit status based

" ‘on third party credit reports and known market factors. The Company used judgment "
to record specific reserves for counterparties against amounts due to reduce the
expected collectible amounts. These specific reserves are re-evaluated and adJusted as
additional information received impacts the amounts estimated.

“The amounts and timing of recorded expenses for any period would differ if different
Judgments were made or different estimates were utilized. An increase’in.the allowance
for doubtful accounts would mcrease the recognized operating expenses and decrease .

-current assets.

The Company provides for an allowance for sales returns for goods reported to be
returned to the Company .where recelpt of such goods is expected to be made

subsequent to'year-end.

The Company provides for an allowance for sales discounts for its various selectéd
customers. This is.estimated based on certain percentages of sales depending on the
agreement with the customers. _

-

The total carrying amounts of trade and other receivables as at March 31, 2017 and
2016 were P758,465,602 and P686,967,314 respectively, which were net of the related
allowances for doubtful accounts, sales returns and discounts amounting to P52,691,083
" and P9,328,005, respectively, as disclosed in Note 7. Furthermore, total due from a
related party as at March 31, 2017 and 2016 ‘were P3,114,119 and P1,907,936,
respectively, as disclosed in Note 18. Management believes that the total due from a
related party are fully collectible. .

Estimating net realizable value of inventories

The net realizable value of inventories represents the estimated selling price for
" inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the -
sale. The Company determines the estimated selling price based on the recent sale
transactions of similar goods with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the date the transactions occurred. The Company records a provision
for the excess of cost over net realizable value of inventories. - While the Company
believes that the estimates are reasonable and appropriate, significant differences in the
actual experience or significant changes in estimates may materially affect the profit or
loss and equity. '

Total inventories recognized in the Company’s statements of financial position
amounting to P524,132,274 and P334,885,914 were net of the related allowance for
inventory obsolescente of P23,959,350 and P27,410,489 as at March 31, 2017 and
2016, respectively, as dlsclosed in Note 8.

Deferred tax aséets

The Company reviews the carrying amounts at the end of each reporting period and
reduces deferred tax assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized.

However, there is no assurance that the Company will generate suff“cnent taxable profit
to allow all or part of its deferred tax assets to be utilized.

Total deferred tax assets recognized in the statements of financial position as at
March 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to P8,731,813 and P9,322,088, respectlvely, as
disciosed in Note 29.
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ost-employment ahd'other employee benefits

he determination -of the retirement obligation cost and other retirement benefits is
ependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in calculating such

ounts. Those assumptions include discount rates, mortality rates .and rates of
ompensation increase, among others. Actual results that differ from the assumptions
recognized in OCI and.therefore, generally affect the recogmzed expense and
corded obligation in such future periods. :

Whlle the Company believes that the assumptions are reasonable and appropriate,.
s:gnmcant differences in the actual experience or significant changes in the assumptlons
' may materially affect the retirement obligations.

The retirement benefit expense charged to operations amounted to P9,231, 70 and
P8,003,372 in 2017 and 2016, respectively, as disclosed in Note 16. The carrying

amounts of the Company’s retirement benefit obligation were P54,193,420 and
P27,376,101 as at March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, as disclosed in Note 16.

CASH
Cash at the end 6f reporting period as shown in the statements of cash flow can be
reconciled to the yelated items in the statements of financial position as.follows:

2017 2016

Petty cash fund _ ) P - P 10, 225
Cash in banks 849,071 18 169,617
Check on hand ) ‘ 114,417,355 45,693,086

. P115,266,426 P63,872,928

Interest income earned from cash in banks at an average annual interest rate of 0.25%
in 2017 and 2016 amounted to P89,767 and P49,663, as disclosed in Note 23. Included
in checks on hand are undeposited checks from a customer on account and only
deposited and cleared subsequent to March 31, 2017 and 2016 amounting to
P114,417,355 and P45,693,086, respectively.

‘7. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - net
- The Company’s trade and other receivables consist of:

Note 2017 2016

Trade receivables ' P766,345,026 P657,331,485

Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts : 2,604,403 2,604,403
: Allowance for sales returns and . ' :

discount 34 50,086,680 6,723,602

. 713,653,943 648,003,480

Advances to employees and others 44,811,659 38,963,834

P758,465,602 P686,967,314

The average credit period taken on sale of goods and services is 60 to 90 days No
interest is charged on these receivables.

In detérmining the recoverability .of trad_e receivables, the Company considers any
change in the credit quality of the trade receivable from the date credit was initially
granted up to the end of the reporting period. The concentration of credit risk is limited
due to the customer base being large and unrelated. Accordingly, Management believes
that ;h‘;re is no further credit allowance required in excess of the amourt already
recorded.
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ovéme‘n"cs' in the allowance for doubtful accounts are as follows:

_ _ Note 2017 2016
Balance, beginning : - P2,604,403 P 604,403
Doubtful accounts expense L 24 - ~ 2,000,000

- Balance, end ‘P2,604,403 P2,604,403

The Company provided an allowarice for sales returns: for near expiring goods reported
to be returned in May 2017 by some of its customer. The Company provided an -
allowance for sales discounts based -on the agreement-per type of products for bulk
orders and early payments. The Company estimates the allowance for sales discount
. based on prior quarter realized discounts. Movements in the sales returns and discounts

are as follows:

Note 2017 2016
Balance, beginning P 6,7243,602' P 19,569,751
Sales returns and discount 21 595,542,901 371,527,227
‘Reversal of sales returns and discount (552,179,823) (384,373,376)
¢ : : 43,363,078  (12,846,149) .

Balance, end

P 50,086,680 P 6,723,602

Advances to employees and others pertain to allowances provided to qualified employees

i
for purposes of performing official business transactions and subject to liquidation within
a reasonable period of time.

INVENTORIES - net

Details of the Company’s inventories are as follows:

' 2017 2016
Inventories : P532,363,841 P337,602,714
Less: Allowance for inventory obsolescence 23,959,350 27,410,489

508,404,491 310,192,225
Semi-finished, raw and packaging materials - at cost 15,727,783 24,693,689

P524,132,274 P334,885,914

In 2017 and 2016, the cost of inventories recognized as an expense during the period is
P1,082,318,984 and P904,803,804, respectively, as shown in Note 22.

The movements in the allowance for inventory obsolescence:

Note 2017 2_016
Balance, beginning P27,410,489 P15,892,043
Provision for inventory obsolescence . 22 24,479,257 - 11,518,446
erite off (27,930,396)
Balance, end

P23,959,350 P27,410,489

Provision for inventory obsolescence was charged to cost of goods sold, as disclosed in
Note 22.
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.'PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS - net

The detalls of the Company’s prepald and other current assets are shown below.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - net

Other prepayments inciude miscellaneous prepayments.

. 2017 2016

Deferred input value-added taxes (VAT) P5,863,630 P5,932,691
Prepaid business permits 5,621,665 S
Prepaid promotional expenses 4,716,717 7,081,146
"Prepaid insurance 1,315,181 1,218,280
Prepaid subscription . 992,326 530,914
Others 432,782 220,300

P18,942,301 P14,983,331

Movements in the carrying amounts of the Company s property and equupment are as

fO||OWS' v
£ 1
Office Equipment, -
Transportation  and Furniture and Leasehold Warehouse :
Note Equipment Fixtures Improvements Equipment Total -
Cost )
Balance,' March 31, 2015 P95,966,772 P20,428,884 P10,563,929 P4,784,538 P131,744,123
Additions 22,761,607 . 1,787,914 1,548,573 ' 369,794 26,467,888
Disposals (22,744,549) (3,097,231) : - - (25,841,780)
Reclassification - - - (2,725,030) (2,725,030)
Balance, March 31, 2016 95,983,830 19,119,567 12,112,502 2,429,302 129,645,201
Additions 23,374,018 1,070,197 - - 24,444,215
Disposals (20,619,097) (126,808) (20,745,905)
Balance, March 31, 2017 98,738,75} 20,062,956 12,112,502 2,429,302 133,343,511
Less: Accumulated Depreciation . )
Balance, March 31, 2015 53,552,253 -16,300,145 8,436,108 1,117,100 79,405,606
Depreciation 24 17,794,167 2,641,381 940,038 585,344 21,960,930
Disposals (22,172,851) (3,069,444) - - (25,242,295)
Balance, March 31, 2016 49,173,569 15,872,082 9,376,146 1,702,444 76,124,241
Depreciation . 24 © 19,273,576 2,256,394 1,262,934 102,535 22,895,439
Disposals {20,231,151) {126,808) - - {20,357,959)
Balance, March-31, 2017 48,215,994 18,001,668 10,639,080 1,804,979 .78,661,721
Carrying Amount . E
March 31, 2017 P50,522,757 P 2,061,288 1,473,422 P 624,323 P 54,681,790
‘Carrying Amount , - 3
March 31, 2016 P46,810,261 P 3,247,485 P 2,736,356 P 726,858 P 53,520,960

Proceeds from disposals totaled P4,178,429 and P4,643,624 for 2017 and 2016,
respectively. Gain on disposal of property and equipment amounted to P3,790,483 and -

P4,044,138 in 2017 and 2016, respectively, as disclosed in Note 23.

‘Management believes that there is no indication of impairment on |ts property and

equipment in both years.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS - net
Movements in the carrying -amounts.of the Company’s intangible assets are as follows:

Marketing ) Computer

Note Rlghts Softwire . Total

" Cost ] B ]
Balance, Aprill, 2015 P49,545,450 P3,551,329 P53,096,779
Additions - 1,570,528 1,570,528
Retirement ' (4,545,449) - (4,545,449)
Reclassification ) - 2,725,030 2,725,030
Balance, March 31, 2016 45,000,001 . 7,846,887 52,846,888
i Addutlons - 3,381,048 3,381,048
Balance, March 31, 2017 45,000,001 11,227,935 56,227,936
Less: Accumulated Amortization - ]
Balance, April 1, 2015 10,537,117 2,934,376 13,471,493
Amortization 24 " 4,500,000 1,306,296 5,806,296
Disposals (4,545,449) - (4,545,449)
Balance, March 31, 2016 ' 10,491,668 4,240,672 14,732,340
Amortization . 24 . 4,500,000 . 2,391,129 6,891,129
Balance, March 31, 2017 . ' . 14,991,668 6,631,801 21,623,469
Cérrying Amount . ’ ) .
March 31,2017 . § P30,008,333 P4,596,134 P34,604,467
Carrying Amount -
March 31, 2016 P34,508,333 P 3,606,215 . P38,114,548

Management believes that there is no indication of |mpa|rment on its intangible assets
in both years.

- Marketing rights .

In 2014, the Company acquired additional marketing rights of certain brands for
Oncology from a local company. The related payables amounting to nil and P12,000,000
as of March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, are disclosed in Notes 13 and 15.

Marketing rights pertain to the consideration given to AstraZeneca Pharmaceuticals
(Phils.), Inc. (APPI).in order to execute the following in favor of the Company:

e sell, transfer and convey the trade name “Multicare Enterbises" as duly registered
with the Department of Trade and Industry;

« execute a License and Supply Agreement on certain pharmaceutical products; and

. assign to the Company its supply and other agreements, including product
registrations and brand names with various suppliers.

" The agreement shall be effective for a period of ten years beginning June 11, 2012 after
which, unless otherwise terminated by either party in writing six months prior to effective
date of termination, it is automatically renewed for the same perlod The marketing
rights have been amortlzed over a ten -year period. .

Rovalties

In consideration for the exclusive right to distribute certain pharmaceditical products and.
use existing trademarks and brands owned by APPI, the Company pays APPI royalty fees
subject to certain terms and conditions. Royalty expense recognized in profit or loss for
the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to P4,832,525 and P4,310,038,
respectively, as shown in Note 24. Related liability amounted to P1,460,130 and
P1,077,168 as at March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectnvely, as part of accrued expenses
in Note 130

AT o M or e o e e st o i e

VIinEK NON-CURRENT ASSEID

The Company’s other non-current assets consist of securlty dep05|t amounted to
P2,289,167 in 2017 and P2,232,206 in 2016.
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ADE AND OTHER PAYABLES |
Company’s' trade and other payables consist of:

Notes

2017

' 2016

-Trade payables '
Trade payable — related parties . 18

-P185,876,492 P133,023,811

253,568,942 - 113,064,511 -
Non-trade payables . N :
Accrued expenses 75,934,515 54,400,686
Output VAT - net 19,954,196 6,580,988
‘Withholding and other ’ ]
government payables. 5,913,440 © 2,910,319
Non-trade vendors 5,269,559 5,027,208
Marketing rights 11,15 - .6,000,000
Promotional expense payable : . - © 3,808,883
Others 1,084,176 1,167,130 .

P547,601,320 P325,983,536 °

that all payables are paid within the credit timeframe.

Details of accrued expenses are shown below.

_ Trade payables have an average 30-90 day credit term.- No interest is charged on-the
trade payables. The Company has*financial risk management policies in place to ensure

Output VAT. payable is presented net of input VAT of P22,436,155 in 2017 and
. P27,403,984 in 2016. : ,

Note 2017 2016
Salaries and employee benefits P52,056,071 P28,677,692
Distribution fees 12,891,947 12,953,486
Professional fees _ 3,593,999 955,005
Advertising and promo expensé 1,574,909 3,536,284
Royalties : 11 1,460,130 1,077,168
Utilities 320,436 2,563,484
Rent 172,290 133,527
Donations .~ 550,500
Others 3,564, 733 3,953,540

miscellaneous expenses.

SHORT-TERM BO RROWINGS

P75,934,515 P54,400,686

. Other accrued expenées consist of unpaid liabilities on outside services and other

. The Company has various secured and unsecured short -term loans obtamed from local

and foreign banks used for working capital purposes. These loans bear annual interest
rates ranging from 2.5% to 3.50%, wnth maturities ranging from one month to one year.

Movement in the balance of short-term borrowings is as follows:

_ 2017 2016
Balance, beginhing P368,250,000 P187,500,000
Proceeds 473,750,000 517,000,000
Repayments (488,750,000) (336,250,000)
Balance, end P353,250,000 P368,250,000

A portion of short-term loans: from a local bank is secured by assignment of acceptable
receivables from Zuellig Pharmaceuticals Corporation and a portion of ‘receivables

pertaining to Mercury Drug Corporation.
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nance costs recognized in profit and loss pertaining.to the above loans for the year
ended March 31 2017 and 2016 amounted to P9,958,631-and P8,683,562, respectlvely

OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

fhe Company’s other-non-current liabilities consist of:

Note 2017 2016

-Non-trade péyable - ‘ 11 P - P6,000,000
Advances received from employees - 732,659
P. - P6,732,659

'Advances recerved from employees relates to payroll deductions for future vehicle
purchase under the Company'’s car policy.

RETIR_EM ENT BENEFIT P‘LANS

Requirement of Republic Act (RA) 7641

RA 7641 provides for the minimdm retirement pay to quall?ed private sector employees

in the -Philippines. Benefits due under RA 7641 are accounted for as defined benefit plan

under PAS 19. However, theré are instances when an employer establishes a defined

- contribution plan.and does not have an equivalent defined beneﬁt plan covering the
benefits required under RA 7641.

An employee upon reaching the age of sixty (60) years or more, but not beyond 65
years which is declared the compulsory retirement age, who has served at least five (5)
years in the said establishment, may retire and shall be entitled to retirement pay
equivalent to at least one-half (1/2) month salary for every year of service, a fraction of
at least six (6) months being considered as one whole year.

The Compariy is in compliance of the minimum requirement of RA 7641 as at
March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. '

Defined benefit plans

The Company sponsors funded, non-contributory defined benefit plans for all regular
and permanent employees. Under the plan, the employees are entitled to retirement
benefits equivalent to 200% of latest monthly salary upon reaching the retirement age
of 60 years subject to other terms and conditions. .

The plans typically expose the Company to actuanal nsks such as: investment risk,
interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk. : '

Investment rr'sk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability'is calculated using a discount rate
determined by reference to high quality corporate bond yields; if the return on plan asset
is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently, ‘the plan consists of fixed income
secuntles and other investments. o

Interest risk

~ Adecrease in the government bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however,
this will be partially offset by an increase in the return on the plan’s debt investments.

Longevity risk :

The present value of the defined benefit plan iiabiiity is caicuiated by reference to the
best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during d after their
employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan partrcnpants quI increase the
plan’s |IabI|lty
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15a/ary risk

The present value of the deﬂned beneﬁt plan llablllty is calculated by reference to the
future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan
o participants will increase the plan’s liability.

The risk relating to benefits to be paid to the dependents of plan members (wndow and
orphan bengfits} is re- insured by an external insurance company.

No other post-retirement beneflts are provided to quallfylng employees

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined
benefit obligation were carried out by an independent actuary as at March 31, 2017.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current serv1ce cost
were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

The prmcnpal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuatlons were as
follows:

Valuation at

_ 2017 2016
Discount rate . " 5.03% 5.23%
Expected rate of salary incredses t 7.00% 7.00%

Amounts recognlzed in the statements of comprehensive income in respect of these
defined benefit plans are as follows:

2017 2016

Current service cost P 7,776,244 P 7,202,696
Net interest expense 1,455,626 800,676
Components of defined.benefit costs recognized |n . : .
profit or loss . _- 9,231,870 8,003,372
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability:
Return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest .
expense) ) 847,593 1,441,403
Actuarial gains and losses: '
from changes in financial assumptlons 2,216,656 (1,140,408)
from experlence adjustments 20,521,200 -3,756,450
Components of defined benefit costs recognized in o
0OCI ] - 23,585,449 ‘4,057,445

P32,817,319 P12,060,817

Retirement costs charged for the year 2017 and 2016 are recognlzed as part of salaries,
wages and other employee benefits and mcIuded in the operating expenses, as disclosed
in Note 24,

The amount included in the statements of financial position arising from the Company’s
obligations in respect of its defined benefit retirement benefit plans is as follows:

March 31
2017 2016
Present value of defined benefit obllgatlons P77,183,214 P50,918,356
Fair value of plan assets 22,989,794 _2;,542,255
_Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation P54,103,420 p27,376,101
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MoVements in the present value of_ the defined bénefit bbligation in are as follows:

2017 _ 2016

“Balance, beginning P50,_918',356‘ P39,961;,649'
Current service cost 7,776,244 7,202,696
Interest cost 2,663,030 - 2,030,052
Remeasurement losses (gains):

Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes : ]

in financial assumptions - 2,216,656 (1,140,408)
Actuarial gains and losses arising from o o
experience adjustments 20,521,200 3,756,450
Benefits paid from plan assets (6,912,272) - (892,083)
Balance, ending P77,183,214 ° P50,918,356
Movements in the fair value of plan asseté in the current period are as follow:
2017 2016

I?alance, beginning ' ' P23,542,255 ‘P24,6‘4‘6,365
Interest income 1,207,404 1,229,376
Contributions from the employer 6,000,000 -
Benefits paid from plan assets - (6,912,272) (892,083)
Remeasurement of gains (losses): (847,593) (1,441,403)

Return on plan assets . :
Balance, ending P22,989,794 P23,542,255

The overall expected rate of return on plan assets is based on portfolio as a whole and _ .
not on the sum of the returns of individual asset categorles

exclusively on historical returns, without adjustment.

The return is based

The sngnlflcant mformatlonv of the fund as at March 31, 2017 and 2016 follows:

2017 2016
Carrying ) Carrying
. Amount Fair Value Amount Fair vValue
Total assets P23,008,186 P23,008,186 P23,561,658 P23,561,658
Total liabilities 18,392 18,392 ° 19,403 19,403
Net assets P22,989,794 'pP22,989,794 P23,542,255 P23,542,255

Actuai return on plan assets amounted to gain of P359,811 and loss of P212,027 in 2017
and 2016, respectively. The analysis of the fair value of plan assets and the expected

' : . rate of return at the reporting date was as follows:
Fair Value
" 2017 2016
Fixed income securities P22,911,121 P15,104,750
Others 97,065 8,437,505
o _ : : P23,008,186 P23,561,658

Fixed income securities consist of investment on government bonds, preferred shares
and deposits. Other pertains to common trust and unitized securities.
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nificant actuarial assumptlons for the determination of the deﬁned obligation are
iscount rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity analyses below
ve been determined based. on reasonably possible changes of the respective
umptions occurring at the end of the reporting penod while holdung all other

ssumptlons constant.

2017 | 2016
Increase (Decrease) . Increase (Decrease)

Change in on Retirement Benefit . - Change in . on Retirement Benefit -

. Assumption Obligation _Assumption . Obligation
" Discount rate (P10,291,470) +100 basis points - (P 6,784,342) © +100 basis points
12,459,223 -100 basis polnts . 8,306,830 ~100 basis points

Expected salary . . ..
‘grgwth rate . 11,256,614 +100 basis points 7,556,275 . +100 basis points
) (9,573,906) -100 basis point (6,347,678) . -100 basis point
No attrition rates 38,323,697 49.7% 43,947,874 86.3%
———mr - -

The sensitivity 'analysis' presented above may not he representative of the actual change
" in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would
oceur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may-be corl_'elated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present vélue of the
defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the Projected Unit Credit method at
Y%he end of the reporting ‘period, which is the samé as that applied in calculatmg the
defined benefit obligation liability recognized in the statements of financial position.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in ‘prepa’i’ing the sensitivity
~ analysis from prior years.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

LL implemented “Lupin Subsidiary Compames Employees Stock Option Plan 2005”
(SESOP 2005) and “Lupin Subsidiary Companies Employees Stock Option Plan 2011”
(SESOP 2011) in earlier years; and “Lupin Subsidiary Companies Employees Stock
Option Plan 2014” (SESOP 2014) in the current year, as approved by the Shareholders
of LL and the Remuneration / Compensation / Nomlnatlon and Remuneration Committee
of the Board of Directors of LL.

The cptions are granted at an exercise price at the time of such grants. Each option
entitles the holder to exercise the right to apply for and seek allotment of one equity
share of LL. The options have vesting periods as stated above in accordance witii the
vesting schedule as per the said plans with an exercise period of ten years from the
respective grant dates.

The following share based payment arrangements were in existence during the current
and prior years: . :

Grant Expiry -Exercise Fair value at

Number Date Date . Price _grant date
Granted on August 14, 2014 3,812 8/14/14 8/11/24 P1,164.80 P500.06
Granted on. August 14, 2014 3,812 8/14/14 8/11/24 1,164.80 540.25
Granted on August 14, 2014 3,812 8/14/14 8/11/24 - 1,164.80 567.91
Granted on August 14, 2014 3,814 8/14/14 8/11/24 1,164.80 592.58
Granted on April 1, 2016 1,535 4/1/16 3/30/26 1479.25 402.08
Granted on April 1, 2016 767 4/1/16 3/30/26 1479.25 466.58
Granted on April 1, 2016 - - 768 4/1/16 3/30/26 1479.25 532.49
Granted on August 25, 2016 256 8/25/16 8/23/26 1521.70 415.37
Granted on ‘August 25, 2016 128 8/25/16 ~ 8/23/26 1521.70 484.03
Granted on August 25, 2016 -128.  8/25/16 - 8/23/26 1521.70  553.99
Granted on January 3, 2017 1,067 1/3/17 1/1/27 1,505.75 415.29
Granted on January 3, 2017 1,067 1/3/17 1/1/27 1,505.75 488.87
Granted on January 3, 2017 1,067 1/3/17 1/1/27 1,505.75 548.62
Granted on January 3, 2017 1,069 1/3/17 1/1/27 1,505.75 610.73
Granted on January 3, 2017 703 1/3/17 1/1/27 1,505.75 415.29
Granted on January 3, 2017 703 1/3/17 1/1/27 1,505.75 ~ 488.87
Granted on January 3, 2017 703 1/3/17 1/1/27 1,505.75 548.62

Granted on Jandary 3, 2017 705 1/3/17 1/1/27 1,505.75 610.73
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ptions- vested on their date of grant and expire within 10 years of their issue, or one
th after the reS|gnat:on of the executive or senior employee; whichever is the earlier.

3ir value of stock options granted in 2017 was estlmated on the date of grant using
lack- Scholes option pricing model. -

share based compensation expense recognized by the Company reIated to stock
ions amounted to P2,295,010 and nil in 2017 and 2016, respectlvely, as disclosed in

§at March 31,2017, a tota! of P4,881 is still outstanding as disclosed in Note: 18 None
‘of the’ options are exercised durlng the current year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

- Details of the transactions and outstanding balances with related parties as at and for
the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows: :

Outstanding Receivable

Category ) Amount of Transactions (Payable) Terms Conditlons ‘Ref
! 2017 2016 2017 2016 )
Fellow Subsidiaries i ' : . 1
. . Payable on'cash  Unsecured, no (a)
Advances P 966,183 P 1,400,800 P 2,434,119 P 1,467,936 and on demand impairment
Purchases 439,051,442 297,914,422 (236,954,880) (102,187,179) Note 22
Manageinent fees . - non-interest
(Kwoya) 25,345,046 5,028,795 (10,539,727) (5,028,795) bearing, : )
Rental income 240,000 240,000 680,000 440,000  Payable on cash Unsecured (d)

and on demand,
non-interest

bearing
Ultimate Parent
Company
. ’ Payable on cash . -~ Note 22
Purchases 39,805,849 25,169,543 (16,614,062) (10,877,332) and on demand, Unsecured
. non-interest
bearing

Payable on cash
and on demand,

IT expense non-interest
reimbursement 7,872,843 967,274 (806,868) (803,478) bearing Unsecured - (e)
. Payable on cash
: and on demand,
Shared based : non-interest ~ Unsecured, no  Note 17
payment Payable 2,295,010 - ’ (4,881) - bearing - impairment
Indlwdual
Shareholder
Payable on cash
Rental (3,638,571) (3,638,571) - .- and on demand, Unsecured
. non-interest (b)
bearing

Outstandlng balance of related party receivables and payables as at March 31, 2017 and
2016 are as follows:

Note 2017 2016
Due from a related party P 3,114,119 P 1,907,936
Trade payables - related parties 13 253,568,942 113,064,511
Due to related parties ‘ 11,351,476 5,832,273

a. Advances and payables pertaih to cost reimbursement for Lupin employees providing
services to the Company’s and payment for rent and utilities in behalf of
Lupin Philippines, Inc., a fellow subsidiary.

b. The Company leases an extension office and warehouse space from one of its
stockholders, as disclosed in Note 27.

C. Manaaement fees referec to cross c“arges of expenses from

SIS WU LIOSS ~i Ap=TIOT

included in professional fees as disclosed in Note 2

d. Rental income is the amount billed for the portion of ofﬁce space occupied by Lupin
Philippines Inc.

e. IT expense reimbursements pertains billed charges from Lupin Limited for the share
- of related expenses- pertamlng to the Company.
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rement Benefit Plan _

Company estabhshed a retirement beneflt plan for the benefits of its employees.
of the ret|rement beneflt plan are disclosed in Note 16.

neratlon of Key Management Personnel

€. remunerat|on of the directors and other members of key management personnel of

. Company are set out below in- aggregate for each of the categories specified in
,S 24, Related party disclosures.

Notes 2017 2016

Short-term employee benefits 24, P19,687,699 P11,039,932
Share based payments - 16,24 2,295,010
Total - : : ] . P21,982,709 P11,039,932
SHARE CAPITAL
Details of share capital are as follows: _
= - { ¢ ' i
. - 2017 2016
No. of * No. of
Shares Amount Shares : Amount
N Authorized: .
. Common shares at P10 par value . 20,000,000 P200,000,000 . 20,000,000 - P200,000,000
Issued and fully paid ' 14,902,650 149,026,500 8,977,500 P 89,775,000
Stock dividends 2,200,000 22,000,000 5,925,150 59,251,500

17,102,650 P171,026,500 14,902,650 £149,026,500

bn, May 25, 2016, the BOD authorized declaration of stock dividends at a rate of P1.48
per share amounting to P22,000,000. On August 12, 2015, the BOD authorized the
declaration of stock dividends at a rate of P6.6 per share amounting to P59,251,500.

Share premium amounting to P28,400,000 as at.March 31, 2017 and 2016 represents
the excess of payment over par value of the original shares issued.

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income.

DIVIDENDS

Note’ Dividends Per Share Total Dividends
2017 2016 - 2017 2016
Cash dividends P2.41 P4.21 P35,915,387 P37,795,275
Stock dividends 19 1.48 6.6 22,000,000 59,251,500

- On May 25, 2016, the BOD approved declaration and payment of cash dividends
amounting to P35,915,387 or P2.41 per share to shareholders on record as at
- May 25, 2016. During the year, a total of P35,816,605 was pasd to shareholders.

On April 27, 2015, the BOD approved declaration and payment of cash dividends
amounting to P37,795,275 or P4.21 per share to shareholders on record as at

April 27, 2015. Out of total leldend declared, P37,725,342 was paid to shareholders
during the year,

The Company has a dividend policy to declare dividends to shareholders of record which
are pald from unrestricted retamed earnings.
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—t‘-of sales-to distributors -and in-house customers. The breakdown of sales
lative returns and discounts is as follows:

Notes - 2017 2016 -
e S P2,501,738,057 P1,952,803,842
. Sales returns and discounts 7,34 595,542,901 371,527,227

P1,906,195,156 P1,581,276,615

OST OF GOODS SOLD
‘Ati analysis of the Company’s cost of goods so!d‘is as follows:

Note 2017 2016

" Inventories, beginni'ng ) 8 P 334,885,914 P 180,884,990
Purchases and other direct costs - 18 1J'2-7L$6j,344 1,058,804,728
‘Cost of goods available-for-sale 1,606,451,258 1,239,689,718
Less: Inventoriesfend _ I8 524,132,274 ¢ 334,885,914

P1,082,318,984 P 904,803,804

Inventory end is presented net of allowance for inventory obsolescence amounting to
P23,959,350 and P27,410,489 in 2017 and 2016, respectively.

'OTHER INCOME

‘An analysis.of the Company’s other income is as follows:

Notes 2017 2016
~ Gain on disposal of property and :
equipment - net 10 P3,790,483 P4,044,138
Rent income 18 240,000 240,000
Interest income 6 89,767 49,663
Claims on insurance ' - 147,488
Others 526,501 - 83,933

P4,646,751 P4,565,222
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27.

: dPERATING EXPENSES

Details of operating expenses are as follows:

Notes 2017 . 2016

Salaries and wages 26 P212,672,937 P148,614,752
Advertising and marketing 133,181,632 143,249,261
Professional fees 18 54,390,134 15,866,576
Transportation and travel 42,646,421 36,659,416
Taxes and licenses 28,852,760 18,495,649
Depreciation 10 22,895,439 21,960,929
Samples 17,804,547 24,030,761
Representation and entertainment 11,990,411 8,565,755
Communication, light and water 11,065,803 7,609,057
Retirement benefit expense 16, 26 9,231,870 8,003,372
Meeting and conferences 8,957,281 6,734,702
Subscriptions 8,418,665 6,391,229
. Rental _ 18, 27 8,141,772 7,427,014
Amortization of intangible assets 11 " 6,891,129 5,806,296
Royalties ) 11 4,832,525 4,310,038
Repairs and maintenance 3,940,531 3,846,881
Delivery 3,381,830 2,828,402
Insurance - 2,472,636 2,055,741
Postage and supplies 2,203,920 3,293,556
Penalty 2,082,942 732,840
Warehouse management fees 1,117,241 5,028,795
-Donations 2,000 18,000
Doubtful accounts 7 - 2,000,000
Others 5,348,550 2,668,815

P602,522,976 P486,197,837

OTHER EXPENSES

An analysis of the Company’s other expenses is as follows:

) . 2017 2016
Foreign exchange loss - net P2,313,334 P3,546,535
Bank charges - 2,022,237 2,037,542

P4,335,571 P5,584,077

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Aggregate employee benefits charged to profit/loss comprised of:

Notes 2017 _ 2016
Short-term employee benefits 24 P212,672,937 P148,614,752
Post-employment benefits 16 9,231,870 8,003,372

P221,904,807 P156,618,124

OPERATING LEASE AGREEMENTS

On April 1, 2016, the Company executed a lease agreement for the extension of its office
space for a period of five years up to March 31, 2021 with the option to renew the
agreement.

On February 15, 2016, the Company executed a lease agreement for the extension of its
corporate office space for a period of three years.
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On June 1, 2016, the Company-signed an extension of lease agreement for its warehouse
épace for a period of three years. The above lease agreements required the Company to
pay security deposits amounting to P2,289,167 and P2,232,2006 as at March 31, 2017
and 2016, respectively, which are included under other non-current assets as disclosed in
Note 12. . : } _ ) :

Total rent expense recognized in profit or loss for the year ended March 31, 2017 and
" 2016 amounted to P8,141,772 and P7,427,Ql4, respectively, as disclosed in Note 24.

.. As at March 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company had outstanding commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as
follows: Co .

_ . 12017 . 2016
" Not later than one year o © ~ P8,092,983 P 7,239,991
Later than one year but not later than five years 14,092,066 21,165,986

P22,185,049 P28,405,977

INCOME TAXES , .
¥
Components of income tax expense are as follows:
Note 2017 2016
Current tax expense P64,555,806 P61,022,033
Deferred tax expense 29 __590,275 (4,107,360)

P65,146,081 _P56,914,673

A numerical reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting prdﬁt
multiplied by 30% in 2017 and 2016 follows:

2017 . 2016

Accounting profit P211,705,744 P180,572,557
Tax expense . 63,511,723 P54,171,767
Tax effect of expenses that are non-deductible: :

Retirement expenses 969,561 2,401,012

Non-deductible representation expenses : - 631,563 130,794

Non-deductible depreciation expense ] : 39,455 -

Non-deductible interest expense 11,109 6,146

Non-deductible penalties ' : 9,600 219,852

Interest income subject to final tax : (26,930) (14,898)
' ' P65,146,081  P56,914,673

29. DEFERRED TAXES ,
The following are the composition of deferred tax assets recognized by the Company:

Charged to Income for Charged to Income for

2015 the Period 2016 the Period 2017

Allowance for inventory X i '

obsolescence . . P4,767,613 3,455,533 P8,223,146 (P1,035,341) P7,187,805
Accruat for donation 150,000 5,400 165,150 {165,150} - :
Unrealized foreign exchange : : ’

loss - 66,020 46,427 112,447 {90,201} 22,246
Provision for bad debts 181,287 600,000 781,287 - 781,287
Unpaid stock option payment - - - 688,503 6RR. 503
Difference arising from

—__2pplication of PAS 17, Leases 40,058 - 40,058 11,914 51,972

P5,204 978 P4,107,360 P9,322,088 .- (P590,275) P8,731,813
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IGNIFICANT AGREEMENTS
Wareheusing and Distribution Agreement

a.1l The Company has an exclusive Distribution Agreement W|th Zuellig Pharma
Corporation (Zuellig) dated November 10, 2006 effective January 1, 2007.
Under the terms of the agreement, Zuellig will store, distribute and sell the
Company’s products within the Philippines. The agreement is for a period of two
years and renewable upon mutual agreement of the parties for successive
periods of two years each.

On November 23, 2012, both contracting parties renewed the warehousing and
distribution agreement. The agreement is for a period of three years and four
months starting December 1, 2012 to March 31, 2016 and will be subject to
automatic renewal every year thereafter, unless terminated by either party by
written notice. .

a.2'On .November 1, 2009, the Company also executed a Distribution Agreement
with GB Distributors, Inc. as an additional distributor and seller of its
pharmaceutical products. The distribution agreement was for a period of three
years from the effective date and has been renewed for another three years.

a.3-In 2014, the Company has entgred into additional distribution 'agreenﬁents with
Globo Asiatico Enterprises,- Inc and Complete Solutions Pharmacy for
distributions of newly acquired Oncology Portfolio.

Manufacturing Agreements

The Company also entered into manufacturing agreements with third parties, to
manufacture private label pharmaceutical products. The agreements are for periods
of two to five years and renewable upon mutual agreement of the parties.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The: fair values of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities are shown below:

2017 ) 2016
Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value
Financial Assets : !
Cash ] P115,;266,426 P115,266,426 P 63,872,928 P 63,872,928
Trade and other receivables - net 758,465,602 758,465,602 686,967,314 686,967,314
Due from a related party 3,114,119 3,114,119 1,907,936 1,907,936
Security deposits 2,289,167 2,289,167 2,232,206 2,232,206
‘P879,13-5,3 14 P879,135,314 P691,107,456 P754,980,384
- Financial Liabilities ‘
Trade and other payables P521,086,313 P521,086,313 P316,492,229 P316,492,229
Short-term borrowings 353,250,000 353,250,000 368,250,000 368,250,000
Due to related parties 11,351,476 11,351,476 5,832,273 5,832,273
Dividend payable 348,715 348,715 249,933 249,933
P886,036,504 P886,036,504 P690,824,435 P690,824,435

Trade and other payables are net of government payables which are not considered
financial liabilities.

The fair values of cash, trade other receivables, due_ from a related parties, trade and
other payables, short-term borrowings, due to related party and dividends payable
reasonably approximate their carrying amounts considering the short-term nature of
these financial instruments. -

The fair value of security deposits accounts approximates its carrying amount since the
. Company does not antucnpate the carrying amount to be significantly different from the
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Market risk

FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Fmanc:al Risk Management Objectives and Pol|c1es

The Company’s dctivities expose it to a. variety of financial risks such as’ market risk
(which includes foreign exchange risk and interest.rate risk) credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Company’s overall risk management program seeks to minimize potential adverse
effects on the financial performance of the Company. The policies for managing specific
risks are summarized below.

Market risk refers to the possibility that changes in market prices, such as foreign
exchange rates and interest rates will affect the Company’s profit or the value of its
holdings of financial statements, The Company focuses on two market risk areas such .
as interest rate risk and foreign currency risk. The objective and management of these

nsks are discussed below:

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk refers to the effects of fluctuations in currency exchange rates
that affect or changes an investment’s value. Foreign exchange risk-arises from future j
commercial transactions and recognized assets and liabilities that are denominated in a
currency that is not the Company’s functional currency. Significant fluctuation in the
exchange rates could significantly affect the Company’s financial position. The Company
undertakes certain transactions denominated in US Dollars; hence, exposures to
exchange rate fluctuations arise with respect to these transactions denominated in US

Dollars.

" The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency denomlnated balances are as

follows:

2017 2016

Trade payables

Due to related parties

P 3,839,051 " P 739,400
23,092,171 16,709,605

P26,931,222 P17,449,005

The sensitivity rate used in reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel is 5% and it represents Management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period
end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes all of
the Company’s foreign currency denominated asset and liabilities.

A positive number below indicates an increase in profit and equity where the Peso
strengthens 5% against the relevant currency. For a 5% weakening of the Peso against
the relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposnte impact on the profit and

equlty for the year.

Effect on Profit and

. equity
) 2017 2016
Trade payables P 3,300 P 36,970
Due to related parties 20,194 835,480
' P23,494 P872,450
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k refers to the possibility that the fair value or future cash flows of a
urnent will fluctuate because of changes in market interest.

ource of the Company'’s interest rate risk relates to cash in banks and short
wmgs, as dlsclosed in Notes 6 and 14.

|ances are short term in nature and with the current interest rate Ievel any
on‘in the interest will not have a material impact on the profit of the Company.

it risk refers to the possibility that counterparty will default on its contractual
jons resulting in financial loss to the Company. The Company has adopted a
of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral,
si appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.

f impairment losses, represents the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk
hout taking account of the value of any collateral obtained:

2017

_ i 2016 !
sh in banks. P 849,071 P 18,169,617
~“hecks on hand 114,417,355 45,693,086 -
ade and other receivables — net 758,465,602 686,967,314

from a related party 3,114,119 1,907,936
cunty deposits 2,289,167 2,232,206

P879,135,314 P754,970,159

“"The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables, net of allowance
“for impairment losses, by type of customer, all of which are located in the Philippines, is
“as follows:

2017 2016
Pharmaceutical companies and distribution P489,527,838 P583,795,146
In-house distribution and others 224,126,105 64,208,333
Advances from employees and others 44,811,659 38,963,835
P758,465,602 686',967,314

As at March 31, 2017 and 2016, the aglng analy5|s of the Company’s financial assets is

e.carrying amounts of financjal assets recorded in the financial statements, which is-

as follows:
Neither Past - Past Due Account but Not Impaired Impaired
Due nor 0-30 Days Past 31-60 Days 61-90 Days . Over 90 Days Financial
Impaired - _Due Past Due Past Due Past Due Assets Total
2017 '
Cash P115,266,426 P - P - P - P - P - P115,266,426
Trade and other -
. Teceivables 503,384,618 94,314,571 27,590,321 2,374,564 136,076,549 2,604,403 766,345,026
Due from related a : :
party 3,114,119 - - - - ) - 3,114,119
Security deposits 2,289,167 - - - = - 2,289,167
P624,054,330 P94,314,571 P27,590,321 P 2;374,564 P136,076,549 P2,604,403 P887,014,738
2016 : : '
Cash P 63,862,703 ' P - P - P - P - P - P 63,862,703
Trade and other ’ .
receivables 482,169,214 67,727,538 4,581,632 18,134,264 82,114,434 2,604,403 657,331,485
Due from refated a :
party’ 1,907,936 - - - - N - 1,507,936
Security deposits 2,232,206 - - - - ) - 2,232,206
P550,172,059 P67,727,538 P 4,581,632 P18,134,264 P 82,114,434 P2,604,403 P725,334,330
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ses }n'ternal ratings to determine the credit quality of its financial assets.
n mapped to the summary ratirig below:

applies to highly: rated financial obligors, strong corporate counterparties

orrowers with whom the Company has excellent repayment experience.

‘Grade - app]ies to financial assets that are performing as expected, including
advances to small and. medium sized entities and recently established

fe Gfade - applies to counterparties with risk profiles that are subject to closer
ring and scrutiny with the objective of managing risk and moving accounts to
ved rating category.

rade - applies to risks that is neither past due nor expected to result in loss but
e the Company requires a workout of the relationship unless an early reduction in
is achievable. : : .-

e end of each reporting period', the credit qualities of the Company’s financial assets
t are neither past due nor impaired were determined to be high grade.

idity risk .

ity risk arises when thé Company will encounter difficulty in meeting !the
igations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or

sther financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as

possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due,
both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or

ng damage to the Company’s reputation.

e Company manages its liquidity needs by forecasting cash inflows and outflows due
“day-to-day business, as well as monitoring scheduled debt service payments for
ncurrent liabilities. The data used for analyzing these cash flows is consistent with
that used in the contractual maturity analysis above.

" The Company normally considers expected cash flows from financial assets in assessing
and managing liquidity risk, particularly its cash resources and receivables. As at
"March 31, 2017, the Company’s financial assets exceeded its non-derivative financial
liabilities.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturity for the Company’s
non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on. the
undiscounted cash flow of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the

gompany can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash
ow.

Weighted Average Less than One to Five”
Interest Rate One Year Years Total
2017
Trade and other payables . P521,086,313 P - P521,086,313
Short-term borrowings 3.00% 353,250,000 . - 353,250,000
Due to related parties i . 11,351,476 - - 11,351,476
Dividends payable 348,715 - 348,715
P88G{036,504 P - P886,036,504
2016 . '
Trade and other payables : - P309,759,570 . P6,732,659 P316,492,229
Short-term borrowings 3.04% 368,250,000 - - 368,250,000
Due to a refated party 5,832,273 - 5,832,273
DIvIdgnds payable . 249,933 - 249,933
P684,091,776 P6,732,659 P690,824,435

The trade and other payables is net of government payables such as withholding taxes
and Output VAT, which are not considered as financial liabilities. Short-term borrowings
are presented at the principal amounts of P353,250,000 and P368,250,000 and expected
!nte_rest amounting to P10,597,500 and P11,194,800 as at March 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively, ) '

T



MANAGEMENT

.-.ob]ectaves when managlng ‘capital are to increase the ‘value of
'nvestment and. maintain high growth by applying free cash flow to
istments that would further the Company’s growth. The Company sets
th the objective of establishing a versatile and. resourceful financial

it and-capital structure.

s overall responsibility for monitoring of working capital in proport[on to risk.
nalytical reviews are made and reported in the Company’s financial reports
eview: on a regular basis. In case financial reviews indicate that the working
ourced from the Company’s own operations including short-term borrowings
t support future operations or projected capital investments, the Company will .
financial support from its related parties.

ement reviews the capntal structure on a quarterly basis. As part of this review,

gement.considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with it. Management
es that Company’s gearing ratios,  which are within acceptable range, are as

2017 2016
'P'886,036,504 P690,824)435
115,266,426 63,872,928
770,770,078 626,961,732
521,095,508 434,036,681

1.479:1 - 1.444:1

'RECLASSIFICATION

rtain amounts in the comparative financial statements and note disclosures have been

. Teclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation. During the year, allowance for
sales return and discounts previously included as part of accruals are reclassified as a

contra trade and other receivables. Also, sales discount previously included in

advertising and marketing under operating expenses are reclassified to sales returns
_and discounts under net-sales.

Summary of the effect reclassification is shown below:

March 31, 2016 Effect of ‘March 31, 2016
j— {(Previously Stated)  Reclassification (As Restated)
" Frade and other receivables - net P 693,690,916 (P6,723,602) P 686,967,314
L _Trade and other payables 332,707,138 (6,723,602) - 325,983,536
- Net Sales 1,625,954,670 (44,678,055) 1,581,276,615
;OperatirLc; Exp enses ‘ 530,875,892 _(44,678,055) 486,197,837

. Management beheves that the above reclassifications resulted to a better. presentatlon
- of accounts and did not have any impact on prior year's profit or-loss. :

||||i1||!|ﬂ||||l|!|lHII1IIIII\I!WIIUIHHIIIHHIlI!!INI|||I|IIIYII|||lNIH||||||II||I||||I|!I!I|))I\|[JI7H



.AR('(,'IN-FO'RMA-TION'_ REQUIRED BY THE BUREAU OF INTERNAL
) UNDER REVENUE REGULATIONS NO. 15-2010

g s.uppléniéntary'information for the year ended March 31, ,20.17 is presented
< of filing with the BIR and is not a required part of the basic financial

f the Company’s gross revenue subjected to VAT are as follows:

Sales VAT Rate Output VAT
able Sales . P1,976,407,470 12% P237,168,896
pt Sales : - - 4,078,469 - _ -
oro-rated : _344,675 0% -
' ' P237,168,896

ut VAT

‘ails of the Company’s in‘put VAT claimed are as fol‘:lows: .

alance, April 1, 2016 P 27,328,968
d: ' :

a. Goods for resale or manufacture or further processing 141,045,519
b. Goods other than for resale or manufacture ' 7,423,448
c. Goods subject to amortization . 2,119,517
d. Capital goods not subject to amortization : 184,306
e. Services Jodged under cost of goods sold ) 4,227,531
f. Services lodged under other accounts 12,682,592
g. Importation of goods other than capital goods 10,403,149
. Claim for tax credit/refund and other adjustment .
Total available input VAT . 205,415,030
Less: Input VAT claimed during the year ' _(182,978,877)
Balance, March 31, 2017 - P22,436,155

Taxes on importétion of goods

Custom Duties and Tariff Fees

‘Landed cost of imports -  P86,692,908
Customs duties paid or accrued 2,507,396

P89,200,304

Documentary stamp ta).(‘

On loan instruments ' ' : P1,333,253
Othe_rs 65,026
P1,398,279

Other taxes and licenses

The Cgmpany’s other taxes and licenses and permit fees paid or accrued charged to
operating expenses in 2016 are composed of the following:

Charged to Operating Expenses

License and permit fees P 4,566,7.51
Documentary stamp tax : ) : 1,398,279
Others _ 22,887,730

P28,852,760

[ MR




f the Company S wnthholdlng taxes paid or accrued are as follows.

PkOVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e Management on May 3, 2017.

olding tax.on compefnsation_- P29;170,149
ded withholding taxes 17,564,481
withholding taxes’ 4,558.044

_ P51,292,674

financial- statements of the Company were approved and authorized for issuance by
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- ANNEX A
RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS
AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION
. As At Marich 31, 2017

MULTICARE PHARMACEUTICALS PHILIPPINES, INC.
th Floor, Rufino Tower: Building, 6784 Ayala Avenue, Makati City

Items ' ._Amount

ed earnings, March 31, 2016 P256,610,181

en-t of refirement benefit obligation . (11,533,794)

‘ (9,322,088

tained eérhlngs, as adjusted, March 31, 2016 235,754,299

on the face of AFS . : . 146,559,663
zed income net of tax :

(590,275

381,723,687

ment of retirement benefit obligation 23,585,449

(57,915,387
[

Retained Earnings, as adjusted, March 31, 2017 ‘P347,393,749

O



lcals Phlllppmes, Inc.

he Prepara’tlon and Presentation of

ments
vework Phase A: ObJectlves and qualitative

ds and Interpretatlons under the Philippine Fmanccal Reporting Standards

‘e Statement Management Commentary

ancial Reporting Standards

First-time Adoption-of Ph/l/pp/ne Financial
'| Reporting Standards

Amendments to PFRS 1 and PAS 27: Cost of an
Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled
Entity or Associate 1

Amendments to PFRS 1: Additional Exemptions
for First-time Adopters

‘.Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exemption from
‘| Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time
|Adopters

Amendments to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinflation
and Removal of Fixed Date for First-time Adopters

Amendments to PFRS 1: Government Loans

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle -
- Amendments to PFRS 1: First-Time Adoption of
PFRS

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2011 -2013 Cycle
- Amendments.to PFRS 1: First-time Adoption of
International Financial Reporting Standards
(Changes to the Basis for Conclusions only)

‘| Share-based Payment

|Amendments to PFRS 2: Vest/ng Conditions and
Cancellations

Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash- settled
Share-based Payment Transactions

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
- Amendments to PFRS 2:Definition of Vesting
Condition

Business Combinations

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
- Amendments to PFRS 3: Accounting for
Contingent Consideration)

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

- Amendments to PFRS 3: Scope of Except/on for
Joint Venturec

el &5

Iﬂﬂ»’f‘dﬂf&' Cﬂfiffdff.!'

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financal

Guarantee Contracss

I 1



Noﬂ-mrrentAmets Held for Sale and Dzmmtmz/ed
Operatzom

Annual If/{pmz/emeﬂts #o PFRSs 2012-2014 C]c/e -

Amendments to PERS 5:"Changes in methods of disposal* .
Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resonrces '

Financial Imtmmeﬂtf Disclosures

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7 Rev/amg/imtzoﬂ of
‘Financial Assels

Amendments to PAS 39 and PERS 7: Rev/amgﬁmtmﬂ of
Financial Assets - Effective Date and Transition

Amendments to PERS 7: Improwng Disclosures about
Financial Instraments =

Amendments to PFRS 7: Dz.w/o.mre.r Transfers of
Financial Assets

Amendments to PERS 7: Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to PERS 7: Mandatory Effective Date of.
PERS 9 and Transition Disclosures

| Amendments to PFRS 7: Hedge Accounting Dz’.rdo.mre;

Apnnnal Improvements to PERSs 2012-2014 C)lz‘/e -
Amendmerits to PERS 7: Servicing contracts ¥

Operating Segments

Annual Improvements to PERSs 2010-2012 Cycle -
Amendments to PERS 8: Aggregation of Segments and
Reconciliation of Segment Assets

Financial Instruments (2014)*

PFRS 10

PFRS 11

Consolidated Financial Statements

Amendments to PERS 10: Consolidated Financéal
Staternent: Tramz'tz'on Guidance

Amendments to PERS 10: Transition Guidance and
Investment Entities

Amendments to PERS 10: Sales or contributions of assets
between an investor and ifs a.rmzz'ate/joint venture *

‘| Amendments to PFRS 10: Im}e.rtmentEntztzeJ App lying

the Consolidation Exception *

Joint Arrangements.

Arnendments to PFRS 1: ]ozntArrangemeﬂtI Transition
Guidance

Amendments to PFRS 11: Acwunting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations *

2




’z:c/o.rure 0f TInterests in Other Em‘ztze.r

Amc_ndments to PERS 12: Dz.w/o.rure of Iﬂtere.rt.r in Other | - . BE B
Sntities: Transition Guidance 1.

[ Amendments to PFRS 12: Transition Guidance and : P
‘[ Investment Entities | ,

Amendxnents to PFRS 12: Investment Em‘ztze.r Apph yzng : : N v
the Consolidation Exception* :

Fuair Vialue Measurement

Annnal Improverients to PFRSs 2070 -2012 Cycle - -

. | Amendments to PFRS 13: Fair Value Meafunzment
| (Armendments to the Basis of Conclusions Onl by, with 1 v

Consequential Amendments to the Bases of Conclusions of ’

Other S tandardr) : I

\Annnal I@myemeﬂt.r o PFRSs 201 7-2073 Cyck - o v
Amendments to PFRS 13: Portfofio Escception ' '

Regulatory Deferral Acconnts * _ v

Accounting Standards

Presentation of Financial Statements v
| Amendment to PAS 1: Capital Disclosures v

Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financial ‘ o T
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation '

Amendments to PAS 1: Presentation of Items of Ozber v
Comprebensive Income B

Abnnyal Imybmz/ement.r to PFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle - v
Amendments to PAS 1: Comparative Information

Amendments to PAS 1: Disclosure Initiative¥ : v
Inventories . v
Statement of Cash Flows _ : v

Accounting Policies, Changes in Aemuntzng Estimates and v
Errors

Events after the Reporting Period : _ v

Construction Contracts v

Income Taxes ' v

Amendment to PAS 12: Deferred Tase: Recovery of v
Underbying Assets '

Property, Plant and Equipment | v

Annnal Improvements to PFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle - . ' v
| Amendments to PAS 16, Servicing Equipment ' -

|

Annunal Improvements to PFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle - _ :
Amendments to PAS 16: Revaluation Method - ‘ v
Proportionate Restatement of Accummnlated Depreciation
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dments to PAS 16: Clarzf Leation of Acceptab/e
\ qf Depmaatzon* _

SN NS

al Improuements to PERSs 2012:2014 Cycle - -
ndments to PAS 19: Disconnt rate: regional market

méﬂtiﬂg for Government Grants and Disclosure of
rament Assistance. ' 5 .

o Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

vendment: Nez Investment in a Foreign Operation

Borrowing Costs

| Related Party Disclosures

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle -
Amendments to PAS 24: Key Management Personnel

Acconnting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans

Separate Financial Statements

-

Amendmeciits to PAS 27: Transition Guidance and
Investment Entities

Amendments to PAS 27: Eguity Method in Separate
Financial Statements*

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Amendments to PAS 28: S ales or contributions of assets
between an investor and its associate/ joint veriture*

Amendmenits to PAS 28: Investment Entities: App) lying
the Consolidation Exception *

Financial Reporting in H Iyperinflationary Economies -

- |Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation

Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 17 Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation

<

J'LHL;J,

m to PAS 32: Classification of 'Rz;glﬁz:r Issues

Aﬁﬁﬂaz’fmpmvemeittx fo PFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle -
Amendments to PAS 32: Tax E Effect of Equity
Dz.rtnbukom

Amendments to PAS 32 Offsetting Financial A.f.fet.f and
Financial Lzabz/ztze.f

v

A



Eaﬂzﬂg.r per S hare

Interim Financial Reporting

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2009- 207 1 @::/e -
Amendtnents to PAS 34: Interim Reponﬁng of Segment

| Assets

\

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle -
Amendments to PAS 34: Disclosure of zﬂfomatzoﬂ
‘elsewhere in the interim financial repor’ ¥

Ingpairment of Assels

Amendments to PAS 36: R,emuemb/e Amozmt Disclosures
 for Non-Financial Assets

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and CantzﬂgentA.r.ret.r

Intangible Assets ' ¥

v

Annual Inmprovements to PERSs 2010-2012 Cycle -
Amendments to PAS 38: Revaluation Method -
Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated Amortization

Amendments to PAS 38: Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Amortization*

Financial Instruments: Recgnition and Measurement

Amendments to PAS 39: Transition and Initial
Recognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge Acoounting of
Forecast Intragronp Transactions

Amendments to PAS 39: The Fair Value Option

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial
Grarantee Contracts

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Re:/a.r.rzﬁmtzon of
Fzﬂanaa/ Assets

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Redlassification of
Financial Assets — Effective Date and Transition

Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-9
and PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives

" | Amendment to PAS 39: Eligible Hedged Iterms

‘| Amendment to PAS 39: Nowation of Derivatives and
Continnation of Hedge Accounting

Amendment to PAS 39: Hedge Accounting Application

’_I;ye.rtmem‘ Property

AN N B N AN

Annsal Improvements to PERSs 2011-2013 Cycle - .
Amendments to PAS 40: Clarifying the Interrelationship
of IFRS 3 and LAS 40 When Classifying Property as
Investment Property or Owner-Ocoupied Property

<

Agriculture

v
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Amendments to PAS 41: Agmu/ture Bearer Plants *

e Interpretatnons

: Cbange.f in Bixisting Decommissioning, Restoration' and
Sinmilar Liabilities

Members' Share in Co-operative Entities and Similar
Tnstruments

| Determining W hether an Arrangement Contains a Lease

Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, Restoration
and Enwronmenta} Rebabilitation Funds

Liabilities ammg from Participating in a Specific Mar/éet -
Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment

N

Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29 Financial
Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies.

e

Scope of PFRS 2

Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-9
and PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives

Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

PERS 2- Gro#up and Treasury Share Transactions

Service Concession Arrangements

Customer Loyalty Programmes

The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding

Reguirements and their Interaction

AN IR NI IR NI N NI LN H NS B N RN

Amendments to Philippine Interpretations IFRIC- 14,
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requairement

Hedges of a INet Investment in a Foreign Operation

Distribations of Non-cash Assets to Owners

Transfers of Assets from Customers

Exctinguishing Financial Liabilities with Eguity Instruments

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine

Ievies

Im.‘rédmz‘z'orz_ of the Buro

| Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to Operating
Activities

Operalmg 1 eases - Incentives

Income Taxes- Recovery of Revalued Non—depreaab/e Assels

Incorire Tasces - Changes in the Tase Status of an Entiry or its
Shareholders :

NN N N RN ENENENENENERN

Evaluating the S. whstance of Transactions Im/o/mng the Legal
| Form of a Lease

6
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Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures

Revenne - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services

Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs

Revenne Recognition for Sales of Propery Upits Under Pre-
Completion Contracts

Clarification of Criteria for Exemp_tz‘aﬂ  from Presenting
Consolidated Financial Statements

Valnation of Bank Real and Other Properties Acquired
(ROPA) '

Rate Used in Dzmozmtiﬂg Post-emplo oyment Bemf it
Obligations

Amouﬂtmg  for Government Loans with Lou/ Interest Rates

Yender the Amendments to PAS 2‘0

Financial Statements Propared on a Basis Other than Going
Concern

Rate Used in Determining the Fair Value of Government
Securities ini the Philippines

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

Current/ non-current Classification of a Callable Terms Loan

: NQ. 2013-03

Contribution Plan Subject to Requirement of Republic Act
(RA)-7641: The Philippine Retirement Law

v
Common Control Business Combinations v
Adcounting for Inter-company Loans W
Casts of Public Offering of Shares ~ L
Fair Value or Revalyation as Deemed Cost | v
Acguisition of Investment Properties — Asset Acquisition or / :
Business Combination? - -
Application of the Péa/z'ng of Interests Method for Business
Combinations of Entities under Common Control in v
Consolidated Financial Statements
| Cost of a New Building Constructed on Site of a Previous v
No 2012-02 | Building
1PIC Q&A | Acounting for Ewmployee Benefits under a Defined
v

*TheSe are the new and revised accounting standards and interpretations that are effecuvc for annual péri riod beginning on
_ Or after the reportmg period ended March 31, 2017.

M



